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The Worthington Meetinghouse (pictured above), 723 Worthington Ridge.  
Built in 1774 in part with timbers from a previous meetinghouse built in 1733, it 
is one of only a dozen remaining 18th century meetinghouses.  This building is a 
classic example of a functional 18th century meetinghouse. In a time before 
separation of church and state it served as a place for town meetings, religious 
services and social events.  Its size is massive with a footprint of 62’ x 45’.  
There are 39 windows, all with 20-over-20 divided glass panes.  The outside has 
been restored to its original look prior to the addition of a steeple in 1790.  The 
steeple housed a 600-pound bell that tolled not only for services but to alert the 
townspeople of events, such as, announcing war, peace, school, birth, death, fires 
and lost children.  The original interior was open like a great barn and a pulpit 
was located on the North wall.  A balcony was added when more seating was 
needed.  The interior has been altered over the years to serve as a church, town 
hall, school, and offices.  In 1848, a fire would have destroyed the building if it 
were not for the quick action of townspeople who raced to the Meetinghouse and 
assembled a massive fire brigade to extinguish the flames. The damage was 
almost immediately repaired, but members voted to build a new church down the 
road.  The building was sold to the town and operated as “Worthington Town 
Hall”.  At that time, a second floor was added with the upstairs being used for 
town and public meetings and the downstairs for two schoolrooms.  In 1907, the 
building was transformed into a “modern” four-room schoolhouse that held 
grades 1-8, later changed to grades 1-4.  Inside, initials of many former students 
of Worthington School can be seen scratched in the rafters.  The school operated 
until 1957 when the Berlin Board of Education moved its offices there.  With the 
construction of a new town hall in 1976, the building was left vacant.   Dedicated 
citizens have been working to give the building new life as a community cultural 
center and museum.                          
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Community Grounds and Community House

 
Reverend Nathan Fenn house, 883 Worthington Ridge, c. 1780 is significant as 
the home of Rev. Fenn, first minister of the Worthington parish who built this 
house at the time of his ordination.  After his death in 1799, Jesse Eddy owned 
the property and had a large tin shop on the premises.  In the mid-19th century, 
his daughter and her husband, Nathaniel James from NYC used it as a summer 
home.  This house is typical of the plain style homes preferred in New England 
until the last years of the 18th century.  The double Dutch door is original. 
 
Phineas Squires House, 888 Worthington Ridge, c.1790.  Phineas Squires, a 
wealthy, prominent resident sold the house in 1811 to Reverend Samuel 
Goodrich, the third pastor of the Second Congregational Church (BCC) and 
father of Samuel Goodrich, the children’s author known as “Peter Parley”.  The 
house reflects the changing tastes of its various owners.  Built as a typical 18th 
century central hall house, it was probably altered by Goodrich in the mid-19th 
century to add large ground-floor windows and the Greek-Revival portico. 
 
901 Worthington Ridge, c. 1780 example of 18th century central chimney house. 
This was the home of local historian, Catharine North, great granddaughter of 
Simeon North, first official pistol manufacturer in the United States.  Miss North 
(1840-1914) devoted her later years to researching and recording Berlin’s 
history.     
 

 
 
Community Grounds and Community House – (pictured above) served as a 
town community center for many years.  The large shingled building sheltered 
playground children on rainy days and hosted many town events. The building 
and original playground were demolished in the late 1970s. 
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Brandegee Hall (pictured above), 983 Worthington Ridge c. 1884. William 
Brandegee built this longtime public building. It is one of only a few dozen 
surviving examples of Swiss chalet style architecture (shallow pitched roof, wide 
overhanging eaves, board and batten).  Swiss Chalet, one of many exotic styles 
popular in the US during the mid 19th century.  Originally it was used for roller-
skating and other forms of entertainment. Later The Berlin Playhouse, a local 
repertory group used its stage. The Town of Berlin acquired the building in 1907 
and it served as town hall until 1974.   
 

Walter Gwatkin House, 1006 Worthington Ridge, c. 1861 – Architecturally 
significant as an unusually elaborate example of the eclectic Colonial Revival 
style that borrows from many styles including Dutch Colonial, Georgian and 
Victorian. The porch was an addition in the early 1900s.  Gwatkin was a 
prosperous butcher, farmer and landowner.  His land extended for twenty-five 
acres to what is now West View Terrace. 
 
Leland Gwatkin House, 1015 Worthington Ridge, c.1895 – is a significant and 
unusual example of late Victorian Vernacular architecture. The asymmetry is 
typical of Queen Anne style, but the shingles and exposed rafters and lozenge-
pane windows are typical of Craftsman style houses.   Gwatkin was the son of 
Walter Gwatkin who resided at #1006.  In the early 1900s the building was the 
site where the trolley from New Britain would stop and turn around. 
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Deacon Daniel Galpin House

year.  

Ashael Hart House

Grace L. Raymond House -
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The Galpin Store

-

Deacon Daniel Galpin House, 914 Worthington Ridge, c. 1790.  Galpin was a 
revolutionary war veteran.  His daughters ran a school at one time in a front 
room.  The Deacon was one of Berlin’s first ardent abolitionists.  After his death, 
a side lot was sold to build the Second Congregational Church in 1850 – now 
Berlin Congregational.  The house was moved to its present location that same 
year.   
 
Ashael Hart House, 935 Worthington Ridge, c. 1785.  Ashael was a tailor and 
maintained a shop in the rear.  When he died in 1821, his son, Freedom Hart, 
took over the property and used it as a shop to make combs.  From 1892 to 1955, 
the first Berlin Library (pictured below) was located just north of the property. 
This Victorian style building no longer exists.  
 
 

  
 
Grace L. Raymond House, 198 Hudson Street, c.1925 – architecturally 
significant as a well-preserved example of the Bungalow style.  Historically the 
house is significant for its connection to Raymond Engineering, a large 
metalworking firm organized by Horace H. Raymond around 1940. The plain 
rear additions were built to house Raymond’s original shop.   
 
Jesse Hart House, 203 Hudson Street, c.1800.  This is an unusual brick house 
with four chimneys and fireplaces in each corner rather than centrally located.  
Jesse Hart was a cabinet-maker, postmaster, tavern owner and half brother to 
Emma Hart Willard. 
 
The Galpin Store, 943 Worthington Ridge, c. 1862.  This brick, two bay façade 
structure is an important 19th century Berlin landmark.  This is a rare example of 
early commercial architecture. Much of the detail has been lost in modern 
alternations but it shows the close similarity of early store buildings to residential 
structures.  The brick building replaced an earlier store building that was 
destroyed in a fire.  The building operated as a store through the 1950s.   
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Elijah Loveland Tavern, 944 Worthington Ridge, c.1797.  The tavern operated 
from 1797 to 1812.  A ballroom was located on the northern end and a barroom 
in what is now the South front room.  The ballroom was torn down by the 
grandson in the mid 19th century.  Like most other commercial buildings of this 
era (including the Berlin Hotel and Fuller Tavern), it is domestic in scale and 
construction.   
 
Samuel Porter House, 949 Worthington Ridge, c.1786. This is a well-preserved 
18th century brick Federal style house with extensive Greek revival 
ornamentation added in the early 1800s.  The entry way is identical to the 
Congregational parsonage (#850) and Elishama Brandegee (#840) homes.  
Samuel Porter served as postmaster and operated the original store next door.  
The house was later occupied by Henry Galpin who rebuilt the store. 
 

 

 

Postal Marker  (pictured above)– brownstone post located at the northeastern 
corner of Middletown Road and Worthington Ridge.  This is one of the few 
postal zone markers left from Ben Franklin’s time.  He devised a system 

        whereby postage was charged by zones marked in miles between distances.  
This marker tells the post rider that it was 11 (XI) miles to the next stop in 
Hartford (H).    

 

Elishama Brandegee, Jr. House, 966 Worthington Ridge.  A well-preserved 
center hall architecture house with attached barns. Twin chimneys opened up 
space for a front to rear entry hall admitting more natural light and allowing for 
better ventilation.  In the 20th century it was part of a private school known as 
Merricourt and later St. James School, a private school for boys, with the main 
building (now Cross Roads Church) on Hudson Street. 
 
Frank Brandegee’s cabin –southeastern corner of Middletown Road and 
Worthington Ridge. In the 1950s, Frank Brandegee, a lifelong bachelor and 
familiar figure around town lived in this tiny building. He never drove a car, 
traveling everywhere by bicycle.  
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